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BEFORE THE

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

In the Matter of:

HEXION INC.,

Springfield, Oregon,

Respondent.

DOCKETNO. EPCRA-10-2019-0104

CONSENT AGREEMENT

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY

1.1. This Consent Agreement is issued under the authority vested in the Administrator

of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") by Section 325 of the Emergency

Planningand Community Right-to-KnowAct ("EPCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 11045.

1.2. Pursuant to Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, and in accordance with

the "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment ofCivil

Penalties," 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA issues, and Hexion Inc. ("Respondent") agrees to issuance of,

the Final Order attached to this Consent Agreement ("Final Order**).
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II. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§22.13(b)and22.18(b), issuance of this Consent

Agreement commences this proceeding, which will conclude whenthe Final Order becomes

effective.

2.2. The Director ofthe Enforcement andCompliance Assurance Division, EPA

Region 10 ("Complainant") hasbeen delegated the authority pursuant to Section 325of EPCRA,

42 U.S.C. § 11045, to signconsent agreements between EPA and the party against whom-an

administrative penalty for violations of EPCRA is proposed to beassessed.

2.3. Part III of this Consent Agreement contains a concise statement ofthe factual and

legal basis for the alleged violations of EPCRA together with the specific provisions of EPCRA

and the implementing regulations that Respondent is alleged to have violated.

III. ALLEGATIONS

3.1. Under Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a), and 40 C.F.R. §§37222

and 372.30, theowner oroperator of a facility covered by Section 313 must submit annually, no

later than July 1ofeach year, aToxicChemical Release Inventory Reporting Form ("Form R")

for each toxic chemical referenced in Section 313(c) of EPCRA and listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65

that was manufactured, imported, processed, or otherwise used during the preceding calendar

year in quantities exceeding the established toxic chemical threshold specified in Section 313(0

of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.25, 372.27, and 372.28.

3.2. Under 40 C.F.R. § 372.22, a facility that meets each ofthe following criteria ina

calendar year isacovered facility for that calendar year and must report under

40 C.F.R. § 372.30 by July 1 ofthe following year:
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3.2.1. The facility has 10or more full-time employees;

3.2.2. The facility is in a Standard Industrial Classification ("SIC") major group

orindustry code orNorth American Industrial Classification System ("NAICS") code

listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22(b) and 372.23; and

3.2.3. The facility manufactured, imported, processed, or otherwise usedtoxic

chemicals in excessof an applicable threshold quantity ofthose chemicals set forth in

40 C.F.R. §§ 372.25,372.27, or 372.28.

3.3. The toxic chemicals which are subject to the reporting requirementof40 C.F.R.

§ 372.30 are listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.65.

3.4. Phenol, methanol, and formaldehyde aretoxic chemicals listed in 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.65. Under 40 C.F.R. § 372.25,the reporting threshold quantity for the manufacture or

processing ofthe toxic chemicals phenol, methanol, and formaldehyde, is 25,000 pounds in one

calendar year.

3.5. A facility subject to the Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Reporting Form (Form

R) reporting requirements of EPCRA § 313 is required to report foreach toxic chemical the

general type of wastestream containing the reported chemical, the treatment method(s)applied

to the waste stream, and an estimate of the efficiency ofthe treatment, as applicable in Section 7

of the Form R, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 372.85(b)(16).

3.6. Under the Pollution Prevention Act of 1990 (PPA), Section 6607,42 U.S.C.

§ 13106, a facility subject to the Form R reporting requirements ofEPCRA § 313 is required to

report, interalia, the quantity ofa toxic chemical entering any waste stream (or otherwise

released into the environment) priorto recycling,treatment, or disposal during the calendar year;
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the amount of the chemical from the facility whichis recycled (at the facility or elsewhere)

during the calendar yearand the recycling process used; and the amount of the chemical from the

facility which is treated (at the facility or elsewhere) during the calendar year,as applicable in

Section 8 of the Form R.

3.7. Respondent is theowner and operator ofa facility located at470 South Second

Street, Springfield, Oregon ("the Facility").

3.8.. During calendar years 2013,2014,2015,2016, and 2017 the Facility had 10 or

more full-time employees.

3.9. The Facility is included inNAICS code 325211, which is included in the list of

covered industry codes in 40 C.FJR. § 372.23.

3.10. During calendar year 2017, Respondent processed methanol inexcess of the

threshold quantityset forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.

3.11. Respondent timely submitted a Form R for methanol to EPA for calendar year

2017, asrequired by 40 C.F.R. § 372,30.

3.12. Respondent's Form R for methanol for calendar year 2017 failed to report the on-

site treatment bya scrubber and efficiency ina gaseous waste stream inSection 7A, the on-site

energy recovery by an industrial boiler in Section 7B, the on-site recycling in Section 7C, the

quantity used for energy recovery on-site in Section 8.2, and the on-site recycling quantity in

Section 8.4.

3.13. Respondent therefore violated Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 42U.S.C. § 11023(a);

40C.F.R. §372.30; and Section 6607 of the PPA, 42 U.S.C. § 13106, by failing tosubmit an

accurate Form R for methanol for calendar year 2017.
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3.14. During calendar year 2017, Respondent manufactured and processed

formaldehyde inexcess of the threshold quantity set forth in 40C.F.R. §372.25.

3.15. Respondent timely submitted aForm R for formaldehyde to EPA for calendar

year 2017,as required by 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

3.16. Respondent's Form R for formaldehyde for calendar year 2017 fai led to report the

on-site treatment by ascrubber and efficiency in a gaseous waste stream in Section 7A, theon-

site energy recovery byan industrial boiler in Section 7B,and the quantity used for energy

recovery on-site in Section 8.2.

3.17. Respondent therefore violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a);

40C.F.R. §372.30; and Section 6607 of the PPA, 42 U.S.C. § 13106, by failing to submit an

accurate Form R for formaldehyde for calendar year2017.

3.18. During calendar years 2013,2014,2015, and 2016, Respondent processed phenol

in excessof the threshold quantity set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.

3.19. Respondent timelysubmitted a Form R for phenol to EPA for calendar years

2013,2014,2015, and 2016, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

3.20. Respondent's Form R for phenol for calendar years 2013,2014,2015, and 2016

failed to report theon-site treatment by ascrubber and efficiency ina gaseous waste stream in

Section 7A, and the quantity treated on-site in Section 8.6.

3.21. Respondent therefore violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a);

40C.F.R. § 372.30; and Section 6607 ofthePPA, 42U.S.C. § 13106, by failing to submitan

accurate Form R for phenol for these years.
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3.22. Duringcalendar years2013,2014, 2015, and 2016, Respondent processed

methanol in excess of the threshold quantity set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.

3.23. Respondent timely submitted a Form R for methanol to EPA for calendar years

2013,2014,2015, and 2016, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

3.24. Respondent's Form R for methanol forcalendar years 2013,2014,2015, and

2016 failed to state the on-site treatment by a scrubberand efficiency in a gaseous waste stream

in Section 7A, theon-site energy recovery by anindustrial boiler in Section 7B, theon-site

recycling in Section7C, the quantityused for energy recovery on-site in Section8.2, the quantity

recycled on-site in Section 8.4, and the quantity treated on-site in Section 8.6.

3.25. Respondent therefore violated Section 313(a) of EPCRA, 42U.S.C. § 11023(a);

40 C.F.R. §372.30; and Section 6607 of thePPA, 42 U.S.C. § 13106, by failing to submit an

accurate Form R for methanol for these years.

3.26. During calendar years 2013,2014,2015, and 2016, Respondent manufactured and

processed formaldehyde in excess of thethreshold quantity set forth in40 C.F.R. § 372.25.

3.27. Respondent timely submitted a Form R for formaldehyde to EPA for calendar

years 2013,2014,2015, and2016,as required by 40 C.F.R. § 372.30.

3.28. Respondent's Form R for formaldehyde for calendar years 2013,2014,2015, and

2016 failed to state the on-site treatmentby a scrubber andefficiency in a gaseous waste stream

inSection 7A, theon-site energy recovery by an industrial boiler inSection 7B, thequantity used

for energy recovery on-site inSection 8.2, and the quantity treated on-site inSection 8.6.
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3.29. Respondent therefore violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(a);

40 C.F.R. § 372.30; and Section 6607 of the PPA, 42 U.S.C. § 13106, by failing to submit an

accurate Form R for formaldehyde for these years.

ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY

3.30. Under Section 325(c)(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c)(1), and40 C.F.R.

Part 19, EPA may assess a civil penalty ofnot more than $57,317 for each such violation. In

accordance with Section 325(c)(3) ofEPCRA, 42U.S.C. § 11045(c)(3), each daya violation of

Section 313of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, continues constitutes a separate violation.

IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

4.1. Respondent admits thejurisdictional allegations of this Consent Agreement.

4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in

this Consent Agreement.

4.3. EPA hasdetermined thatanappropriate penalty to settle thisaction is $60,000

(the "Assessed Penalty") and Respondent consents to theassessment of theAssessed Penalty.

4.4. Respondent agrees topaytheAssessed Penalty within 30days of the effective

date of the Final Order.

4.5. Payments under thisConsent Agreement and the Final Order maybe paid by

check (mail or overnight delivery), wiretransfer, ACH, or online payment. Payment insuuctions

are available at: http://www2.epa.gov/financial/makepayment. Payments made bya cashier's

check or certified checkmustbe payable to the orderof "Treasurer, United StatesofAmerica"

and delivered to the following address:
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

Respondent must note on the check the title and docket number of this action.

4.6. Concurrently with payment, Respondent must serve photocopiesofthe check, or

proof of other payment method, described in Paragraph 4.5 on the Regional Hearing Clerk and

EPA Region 10 at the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop 11-C07
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155
Seattle, Washington 98101
young.teresa@epa.gov

Meghan Dunn
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop 20-C04
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155
Seattle, Washington 98101
dunn.meghan@epa.gov

4.7. If Respondent fails to payany portion of the Assessed Penalty in full by its due

date, the entire unpaid balance ofthe AssessedPenalty and accrued interest shall become

immediately due and owing. If such a failure to pay occurs, Respondent maybesubject to acivil

action under Section 325(f)(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(f)(1), to collect any unpaid

penalties, together with interest, handling charges, and nonpayment penalties, as set forth below.

4.8. If Respondent fails to pay anyportion of the Assessed Penalty in full by its due

date, Respondent shall also be responsible for payment of the following amounts:

4.8.1. Interest. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1), any unpaid portion ofthe

Assessed Penalty shall bear interest at the rate established by theSecretary of the

Treasury from theeffective date of the Final Order contained herein, provided, however,

that no interest shall be payable on any portion of theAssessed Penally that is paid within

30 days of the effectivedate of the Final Order contained herein.
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4.8.2. Handling Charge. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(1), a monthly handling

charge of$15 shall be paid ifany portion ofthe Assessed Penalty is more than 30 days

past due.

4.8.3. Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment

penalty of not more than 6% per annum shall be paid on any portion ofthe Assessed

Penalty that is more than 90 days past due, which nonpayment shall be calculated asof

the date the underlying penalty first becomes past due.

4.9. The Assessed Penalty, including any additional costs incurred under

Paragraphs 4.8 and 4.26, represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall not

be deductible for purposes of federal taxes.

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT

4.10. Respondent agrees to implement and complete a Supplemental Environmental

Project (SEP) in accordance with all provisions described in this Consent Agreement. The SEP

involves the addition of a chillerto the phenol formaldehyde resin ("PF Resin") seal water tank

in the Facility's phenol-formaldehyde resin production processes. The chiller will cool the seal

water toa lower temperature than iscurrently possible with the Facility's existing chiller,

thereby reducing emissions from the scrubber. The primary purpose of the SEP is to reduce

emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOCs), including methanol, formaldehyde, and

phenol, which arc hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) as well as listed toxic chemicals under

40 C.F.R. §372.65.

4.11. Respondent agrees to purchase and install one 60-ton seal water chiller("Chiller")

at the Facility, which, operating in addition to theexisting chiller at the Facility, is intended to
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enablethe Facility to cool the water in the PF Resin seal water tank to a temperature of 10

degrees Celsius,

4.12. Respondent agrees to install and begin operating the SEP within 95 calendar days

ofthe effective date ofthis Consent Agreement ("Effective Date"), in accordancewith all

provisions described in this Consent Agreement, provided that, if Respondent orders the Chiller

from the Chiller vendor within five (5) business days of Respondent receiving notice of the

Effective Date ("Order Date") and the Chiller is not delivered to Respondent within sixty one

(61) days of theOrder Dale ("Delivery Date") despite Respondent's commercially reasonable

efforts to ensure delivery by the Delivery Date, the deadline for installing andbeginning to

operate the SEP pursuant to thisparagraph will beextended by thenumber of days theChiller is

delivered after the Delivery Date.

4.13. Respondent further agrees to operate theSEP atthe Facility for a minimum of two

years (730 calendar days) uponcompletion of SEP installation.

4.14. Respondent certifies to the truth, accuracy, and completeness ofall cost

information provided to EPA in connection with EPA'sapproval of the SEP, and that

Respondent in good faith estimates that the cost to implement SEP, exclusive of internal labor

costs, is $134,908.

4.15. Respondent also certifies that, as of thedate of thisConsent Agreement:

a. Respondent is notrequired to perform ordevelop theSEP by any federal,

state, or local law or regulation;

b. Respondent is notrequired to perform ordevelop the SEP by another

agreement, under a grant, oras injunctive reliefin any other case;
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c. Respondent has not received, and is not presently negotiating to receive,

credit in any other enforcement action for the SEP;

d. The SEP isnotaproject that Respondent was planning orintending to

construct, perform, or implement other than in settlement of the claims resolved in this

Consent Agreement;

e. Respondent will not receive any reimbursement for any portion of the SEP

from any other personor entity; and

f. The activities and services funded by theSEP will notbe conducted on or

providebenefit to federally-owned property.

4.16. For federal income tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize

ininventory orbasis nor deduct the first $134,908 of costs orexpenditures incurred in

performingthe SEP.

4.17. Respondent hereby certifies that it is nota party to anyopen federal financial

assistance transaction that is funding or could fund the sameactivityas the SEP.

4.18. Respondent is responsible for thesatisfactory completion of the SEP in

accordance with the requirements of thisConsent Agreement. Respondent may use contractors,

consultants,or others in planningand implementing the SEP.

4.19. Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report ("Completion Report 1") to

EPA60 days after the date on which Respondent installs and begins operating the SEP as

described in paragraph 4.12. Completion Report 1shall contain the following information:

1) A detailed description of the SEPas implemented;
2) Certification that the chiller has been installed and chiller operation has

been initiated pursuant to the provisions ofthis Consent Agreement;
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3) Documentation providing evidence ofchiller installation and completion
ofwork associated with such installation (including but not limited to
photos, vendor invoices or receipts, correspondence) anddocumentation
ofall SEPexpenditures; and

4) A description of any problemsencountered during instal lation or initial
operation and solutions devised to solve these problems.

4.20. Respondent shall submit a second report ("Completion Report 2") to EPA within

30 days afteroperating the SEP for two years (730 calendar days). Completion Report2 shall

contain the following information:

1) A description ofany problems encountered duringthe preceding 730 days
ofSEP implementation (not including thosedescribed in Completion
Report I) and the solutions thereto;

2) A description of anychanges or repairs that havebeen made to the chiller
and associated equipment thatdiffer from the design as proposed to EPA;

3) A description of the environmental and public health benefitsresulting
from implementation of the SEP;

4) The numberofhours the Chiller was operated during the preceding 730
days andthe temperature atwhich it wasoperated during thesehours; and

5) Data regarding emissions reductions, whethercollectedthrough emission
testing,massbalance calculations, predictive emissionmodelingused for
airpermit compliance, or otherdemonstration ofthe quantitative
effectiveness of the SEP, showing reductionsin emissions ofVOCs—
including the HAPs methanol, formaldehyde, and phenol—that were
achieved by use ofthe additional chiller.

4.2.1. Unless otherwise instructed in writing by EPA, Respondentshall submit all

notices and reports related to the SEP asrequired by this Consent Agreement by first class mail,

overnight mail, or hand delivery to:

Meghan Dunn
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop 20-C04
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155
Seattle, Washington 98101
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4.22. Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect Respondent's records related to the SEP

at any reasonable time toconfirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity with the

representations made herein.

4.23. Respondent shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying data

for documents orreports submitted to EPA pursuant to this Consent Agreement until Completion

Reports 1and 2 are accepted pursuant to Paragraph 4.24, and Respondent shall provide the

documentation ofanysuch underlying data to EPA within 15 days ofa written request for such

information. In alldocuments or reports including, without limitation, Completion Reports 1 and

2 submitted toEPA pursuant to thisConsent Agreement, Respondent shall, by a corporate

officer, sign and certify underpenalty of lawthat the information contained in sucha document

orreport is true, accurate, andnot misleading by signing the following statement:

"I certifyunder penalty of lawthat I haveexamined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on my inquiry
ofthose individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, I believethat
the information is true,accurate, and complete. I am aware that thereare significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and
imprisonment.**

4.24. FollowingreceiptofCompletion Report 1,described in Paragraph 4.19, and

Completion Report 2, described in Paragraph 4.20, EPAwill do one of the following: (i) accept

the Report; (ii) rejectthe Report, notify Respondent, in writing,ofdeficiencies in the Report, and

provide Respondent an additional 30 days in whichto correct any deficiencies; or (iii) reject the

Report and seek stipulated penalties in accordance with Paragraphs 4.26 and4.27.

4.25. If Respondent fails to satisfactorily complete the SEP as contemplated by this

Consent Agreement, then stipulated penaltiesshall be due and payable by Respondent to EPA

upon demand in accordance with Paragraphs 4.26 and 4.27. EPA may, in the unreviewable
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exerciseof its discretion, reduce or waive stipulated penalties otherwisedue underthis Consent

Agreement. The determination ofwhether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed and

whether Respondent has made a good faith, timely effortto implement the SEP is reserved to the

sole discretion of EPA.

4.26. If Respondent fails to satisfactorily complete the SEP asrequired by this Consent

Agreement, Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties, upon written demand from EPA, in the

following amount foreachday the SEP remains incomplete:

Period of Noncompliance
1* through 7th day
8th through 21st day
22nd through 30,h day
Greater than 30 days

Penalty Per Violation Per Day
$100

$200
$300

$500

4.27. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties within 15 days of receipt of awritten

demand byEPA for such penalties. Payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of

Paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6. Interest and late charges shall be paid as stated in Paragraph 4.8.

4.28. Anypublic statement, oral or written, in print, film, orother media, made byorat

the direction of Respondent, which makes reference to the SEP from the date ofthe execution of

this Consent Agreementshall include the following language:

"This project was undertaken inconnection with the settlement of an
administrative enforcement action taken by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act.'*

4.29. This Consent Agreement shall not relieve Respondent of itsobligation to comply

with all applicable provisions of federal, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be aruling

on, or determination of,any issue related to any federal, state or local permit, nor shall it be
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construed to constitute EPA approval ofthe equipment or technology installed by Respondent in

connection with cither SEP undertaken pursuant to this Consent Agreement.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

4.30. The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is

authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and to bind

Respondent to this document.

4.31. Except as described in Paragraph 4.8and 4.27, each party shall bear its owncosts

and attorneys' fees in bringingor defending this action.

4.32. For thepurposes of this proceeding, Respondent expressly waives any affirmative

defenses and the right to contest theallegations contained in this Consent Agreement and to

appeal the Final Order.

4.33. Theprovisions of thisConsent Agreement and the Final Order shall bind

Respondent and its agents, servants, employees, successors, and assigns.

4.34. Respondent consents to the conditionsspecified in this consent agreement.
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4.35. The above provisions in Pari IV are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon by

Respondent and EPA Region 10.

DATED:

A^_J

DATED:

win.
/

OATED:

ft~°x~fi\

FOR RI-SPONDKNTr""'

- A \ t •

DOUGLAS A. .101 INS, Executive Vice President and
General Counsel

Ilex ion Inc.

onal Manufacturing Director

I.AINANT:

to/) ^^

I-D WARD J. KOWAI.SK1, Director
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
EPA Region 10

kv
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BEFORE THE

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

In the Matter of:

HEXION INC.,

Springfield, Oregon,

Respondent.

DOCKETNO. EPCRA-10-2019-0104

FINAL ORDER

1.1. TheAdministrator has delegated theauthority to issue this Final Order to the

Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who has redelegated this authority to the Regional

Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10.

1.2. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are ratified and incorporated by

reference intothis Final Order. Respondent isordered to comply with the terms of settlement.

1.3. TheConsent Agreement andthisFinal Order constitute a settlement by EPA of all

claims forcivilpenalties underEPCRA for theviolations alleged in Part IIIof the Consent

Agreement. In accordance with40 C.F.R. § 22.31 (a), nothing in this Final Ordershall affect the

right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or otherequitable reliefor

criminal sanctionsfor any violationsof law. ThisFinalOrderdoes not waive, extinguish, or

otherwise affect Respondent's obligations to comply with all applicable provisions of EPCRA

and regulationspromulgated or permits issuedthereunder.
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1.4. This Final Ordershall become effective upon filing with the Regional Hearing

Clerk.

SO ORDERED this 3 day of SffifertW .2019.

Regional Judicial Officer
EPA Region 10
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Certificate of Service

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
FINAL ORDER, In the Matter of: Hexion Inc., Docket No.: EPCRA-10-2019-0104, was filed with
the Regional Hearing Clerk and served on the addressees in the following manner on thedate specified
below:

The undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the document was delivered to:

Danielle Mcinhardt

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop 11-C07
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 155
Seattle, Washington 98101

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned document
was placed in the United States mail.certified/return receipt to:

Douglas A. Johns
Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Hexion, Inc.
180 East Broad Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215

DATED this _/_ day of 4y>i^^2Q.l9. /"^ - -
TERESA YOUN

Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10


